
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COU 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF WEST VI 1 I 

CHARLESTON DIVISION I 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

f NTERED - 
TERESA L DEPPNER. CLERK 
U.8. DlsMct & Benkru Couna 
80Utbhl Dlatrld Of &Vlmlnia 

v. CRUZINAL ACTION NO. 203-00217 

RONALD SHAMELIN, 

MEMORANDUM OPINION AND ORDER 

A criminal defense attomcy seeking to test the limits of Ule United States Suprcmc Conrt's 

days-old decision in Blakely v. Washzglon, 2004 WL 1402697 (June 24, 2004), could not have 

conjured a more fitting defendmt than Ronald Shamblin. Shamblin, who had previously pleded 

guilty to Conspiracy to Manufaclure Methamphetamine in violation of 21 U.S.C. fj 846, was 

sentenced to 240 months in prison on June 21, 2004. The calculation of Shamblin's sentence 

included so much uffense conduct, so much relevant conduct, and so many enhancements that 

Shamblin's sentencing range under the United States Sentencing Guidelines was, literally, off the 

chart. The guidelines indicated that Shamblin should receive a scntence of life imprisonment. 

Bccausc no amount of methamphetamine was charged in his indictment, howevcr, Shamblin's 

sentencewas limited, bytheFourth Circuit's interpretation of Apprendzv. NewJerscy, 530U.S. 466 

(2000), to thc maximum sentence under. the relcvant statute.' Now, on the last day that 1 may rcview 

In Uttifed Stntes v. Kvzter, 235 F.3d 192 (4th Cir. 2000), the Fourth Circuit was faced 
squarely with the issue ofwhcthcr the maximum senience for Apprendi purposes was the sttttuto~y 

(continucd ...) 



his scntcncc for clear error under Fed. R. Crim. P. 35(a), Shamblin has benefitted again from the 

Supreme Court's Apprendi decision, as further explained in Blakely. Yesterday, the defendant filed 

a Motion to Corrcct Unlawful Sentencing Within Seven Days pocket 691. For thc rcasons stated 

below, I have GMNTED the pending motion [Docket 691, and WSENTENCED Shamblin in 

accordance with Apprendi and BIakely. 

I. Background 

On August 21,2003, law enforcement officers with LheDrug En forccmcnt Agency, the West 

Virginia Melropohtan Drug Enforcement Network Team, and the City of St. Albans Police 

Department searched Rondd Shamblin's home. They found a gallon jug of iodine and seved 

bottles of lye and hydrogcn peroxide, alongwith papers they believedto be drug distribution records 

and a computer printout w~th  instructions on how to manufacture methamphetamine. Thc officers 

found a loadcd shotgun under a mattress and four other loaded fuearms locked in a gun casc. 

When Shamblin droveby his home early m the morning ofAugust 22,2003, he was stopped 

and arrested, O n  Scptemba 16,2003, a federal grand jury sitting in Charleston, West Virginia, 

returned a sealed indictment against him, chmging him with conspiracy to manufacture quanlities 

of methamphetamine in violation of 21 U.S.C. 8 846. Shmnblin pleaded guilty to the charge 

contilined in the indictment on October 24,2003. Hcplcaded without the benef 1 of aplea agreement 

with thc United States. At the plea hearing, the court conducted acolloquy to determine that there 

'(...continued) 
maximum or the maximum punishmcnt a judge could impose undcr thc federal Sentencing 
Guidelines. J d  at 199. While achowledging lhat Apprendi could be construed as prohibiting a 
judgc from making factual determinations that raise the defendant's sentence above the Sentencing 
Guideline range, tho Fourtli Circuit nevertheless held that the relevant maximum sentence for 
Apprendz purposes was the statutory maximum providcd in Title 18 of the United States Code. Id. 
at 200-01. 



was a factual basis for the plea. While admitting to conduct sufficient to sustain his plea, Shdmblin 

presented his involvement in (he conspiracy to manufacture methamphetamine as  minimal: 

TIE COURT: Tell me what you did that makes you believe you're guilty. 
T I E  DEFENDANT: I became addicted to methamphetamine, and at one point I 

purchased Sudafed that were used to manufacture 
methamphetamine. 

THE COURT: Did you purchase thc Sudafcd that were used to manufacture 
the amphetamines all by yourself in conjunction with 
somebody else's erorts to manufacture? What else was 
going on? 

THE DEFENDANT: I went to the store basically by myself, but 1 was told by 
somebody else lo go get it so thcy could make the crank. 

THE COURT: So that-so, you had an understanding with somebody else that 
if you would get Sudafed, what would happen? 

THE DEFENDANT: Then they would give me some free crank. 
THE COURT: Afler they- 
TIE  DEFENDANT: Ycs, sir. 
THE COURT: -took the Sudafed? 
T I E  DEFENDANT: Yes. 
1TIE COURT: And did what with the Sudafed? 
THE DEFENDANT: Thcy somehow use it to make methamphetamine. And they 

said they would give me some methampheta~nme if I got 
some Sudafed becausc 1 guess it's hard for them to get cnough 
lo makc cnough crank. 

THE COURT: Did these acts occur from about April, 2003, until about 
August 21 st, 2003? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 
THE COURT: A little-do you havc some problems wilh the dates? 
THE DEFENDANT: Well, does that mcnn 1 did it from April lo then or in that 

period of time it happened? 
THE COURT: Well, what you did that would rcfer to the conspiracy. Was 

it in that period oftimc? 
THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, 
THE COURT: That will be good enough. Whcrc? 
THE DEFENDANT: At Target Department Store. 
T I E  COURT: And where is that located7 
THE DEFENDANT: Charleston, Wesl Virginia, South Charleston. 

October 24,2003, Plea Hearing Transcript at 7-9. 


































